

Office of the Secretary, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW, Washington, DC 20436, telephone (202) 205–2000. General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its internet server at <https://www.usitc.gov>. The public record for this investigation may be viewed on the Commission's electronic docket (EDIS) at <https://edis.usitc.gov>. Hearing-impaired persons are advised that information on this matter can be obtained by contacting the Commission's TDD terminal on (202) 205–1810.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The Commission instituted this investigation on November 24, 2017, based on a complaint and supplement, filed on behalf of Yeti Coolers, LLC of Austin, Texas ("Yeti"). 82 FR 55860–61 (Nov. 24, 2017). The amended complaint, as supplemented, alleges violations of section 337 based upon the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, and the sale within the United States after importation of certain insulated beverage containers, components, labels, and packaging materials thereof by reason of infringement of U.S. Trademark Registration Nos. 5,233,441 and 4,883,074; U.S. Copyright Registration Nos. VA 1–974–722, VA 1–974–732, VA 1–974–735; and U.S. Design Patent Nos. D752,397, D780,533, D781,146, and D784,775. The complaint further alleges that an industry in the United States exists as required by section 337. The notice of investigation named thirteen respondents, including Huizhou Dashu Trading Co., Ltd. of Huizhou City, China ("Huizhou Dashu") and Huagong Trading Co., Ltd. of Wangshizhuang, China ("Huagong"). The Office of Unfair Import Investigations ("OUII") was also named as a party.

The Commission terminated eleven of those respondents based on settlement agreements and partial withdrawals of the complaint. *See* Order No. 11 (Mar. 8, 2018), *not reviewed* Notice (Mar. 26, 2018); Order Nos. 19, 20, and 21 (Apr. 17, 2018), *not reviewed* Notice (May 11, 2018); Order No. 27 (Jun. 8, 2018), *not reviewed* Notice (Jun. 29, 2018); Order No. 29 (Sept. 27, 2018), *not reviewed* Notice (Oct. 22, 2018).

The Commission found the remaining two respondents, Huizhou Dashu and Huagong, in default for failing to respond to the complaint and notice of investigation. Order No. 29 (Sept. 27, 2018), *not reviewed* Notice (Oct. 22, 2018). The Commission also sought briefing on remedy, the public interest, and bonding, and received main and reply submissions from Yeti and OUII.

In response, both Yeti and OUII requested that the Commission issue an LEO against Huizhou Dashu and Huagong. The Commission received no responses from the public.

The Commission has determined that the appropriate form of relief in this investigation is an LEO prohibiting the unlicensed entry of insulated beverage containers, components thereof, labels, and packaging material thereof that infringe one or more of U.S. Trademark Registration Nos. 5,233,441 and 4,883,074; U.S. Copyright Registration Nos. VA 1–974–722, VA 1–974–732, VA 1–974–735; and U.S. Design Patent Nos. D752,397 and D780,533, and that are manufactured abroad by or on behalf of, or imported by or on behalf of, Huizhou Dashu and Huagong. The Commission has further determined that the LEO should also prohibit the unlicensed entry of insulated beverage containers, components thereof, labels, and packaging material thereof that infringe one or more of U.S. Design Patent Nos. D781,146 and D784,775, and that are manufactured abroad by or on behalf of, or imported by or on behalf of, Huagong. The Commission has additionally determined that the public interest factors enumerated in Section 337(g)(1) (19 U.S.C. 1337(g)(1)) do not preclude issuance of the LEO. The Commission has determined that the bond for importation during the period of Presidential review shall be in the amount of one hundred (100) percent of the entered value of the imported subject articles of Respondent. The Commission's order was delivered to the President and the United States Trade Representative on the day of its issuance.

The authority for the Commission's determination is contained in section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), and in Part 210 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 CFR part 210).

By order of the Commission.

Issued: December 13, 2018.

Lisa Barton,

Secretary to the Commission.

[FR Doc. 2018–27413 Filed 12–18–18; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[Investigation No. 337–TA–1101]

Certain Fuel Pump Assemblies Having Vapor Separators and Components Thereof; Notice of Issuance of a Limited Exclusion Order Against a Respondent Found in Default; Termination of Investigation

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that the U.S. International Trade Commission has issued a limited exclusion order against certain fuel-pump assemblies with vapor separators and components thereof of respondent Wenzhou Jushang (JS) Performance Parts Co. Ltd. of Wenzhou, China ("JSP," or "Respondent"). The investigation is terminated.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

Robert Needham, Esq., Office of the General Counsel, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW, Washington, DC 20436, telephone (202) 708–5468. Copies of non-confidential documents filed in connection with this investigation are or will be available for inspection during official business hours (8:45 a.m. to 5:15 p.m.) in the Office of the Secretary, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW, Washington, DC 20436, telephone (202) 205–2000. General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its internet server at <https://www.usitc.gov>. The public record for this investigation may be viewed on the Commission's electronic docket (EDIS) at <https://edis.usitc.gov>. Hearing-impaired persons are advised that information on this matter can be obtained by contacting the Commission's TDD terminal on (202) 205–1810.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The Commission instituted this investigation under section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337 ("section 337"), on March 2, 2018, based on a complaint filed by Carter Fuel Systems, LLC of Logansport, IN ("Complainant"). 83 FR 9027 (Mar. 2, 2018). The complaint alleges a violation of section 337 by reason of infringement of certain claims of U.S. Patent No. 6,257,208 ("the '208 patent"). The notice of investigation named JSP as a sole respondent. *Id.* The Office of Unfair Import Investigations is not a party in this investigation.

On August 20, 2018, the Commission determined not to review an initial

determination (Order No. 7) that found Respondent to be in default under Commission Rule 210.16 (19 CFR 210.16), and issued a **Federal Register** Notice ("Commission Notice") to that effect. 83 FR 42937–38 (Aug. 24, 2018). The Commission also requested briefing from the parties and the public on the issues of remedy, the public interest, and bonding. *Id.* at 42938. Complainant filed a timely written submission pursuant to the Commission Notice requesting a limited exclusion order ("LEO") against Respondent. No other submissions were filed pursuant to the Commission Notice.

The Commission has determined that the appropriate form of relief in this investigation is an LEO prohibiting the unlicensed entry of fuel-pump assemblies with vapor separators and components thereof that infringe one or more of claims 1–5 and 7–18 of the '208 patent and that are manufactured abroad by or on behalf of, or imported by or on behalf of, Respondent. The Commission has further determined that the public interest factors enumerated in Section 337(g)(1) (19 U.S.C. 1337(g)(1)) do not preclude issuance of the LEO. The Commission has determined that the bond for importation during the period of Presidential review shall be in the amount of one hundred (100) percent of the entered value of the imported subject articles of Respondent. The Commission's order was delivered to the President and the United States Trade Representative on the day of its issuance.

The authority for the Commission's determination is contained in section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), and in Part 210 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 CFR part 210).

By order of the Commission.

Issued: December 13, 2018.

Lisa Barton,

Secretary to the Commission.

[FR Doc. 2018–27414 Filed 12–18–18; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P

JOINT BOARD FOR THE ENROLLMENT OF ACTUARIES

Meeting of the Advisory Committee; Meeting

AGENCY: Joint Board for the Enrollment of Actuaries.

ACTION: Notice of Federal Advisory Committee meeting.

SUMMARY: The Joint Board for the Enrollment of Actuaries gives notice of

a teleconference meeting of the Advisory Committee on Actuarial Examinations (a portion of which will be open to the public) on January 7–8, 2019.

DATES: Monday, January 7, 2019, from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. (EST), and Tuesday, January 8, 2019, from 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. (EST).

ADDRESSES: The meeting will be held by teleconference.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Elizabeth Van Osten, Designated Federal Officer, Advisory Committee on Actuarial Examinations, 202–317–3648.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Notice is hereby given that the Advisory Committee on Actuarial Examinations will hold a teleconference meeting on Monday, January 7, 2019, from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. (EST), and Tuesday, January 8, 2019, from 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. (EST).

The purpose of the meeting is to discuss topics and questions that may be recommended for inclusion on future Joint Board examinations in actuarial mathematics and methodology referred to in 29 U.S.C. 1242(a)(1)(B) and to review the November 2018 Pension (EA–2F) Examination in order to make recommendations relative thereto, including the minimum acceptable pass score. Topics for inclusion on the syllabus for the Joint Board's examination program for the May 2019 Basic (EA–1) Examination and the May 2019 Pension (EA–2L) Examination will be discussed.

A determination has been made as required by section 10(d) of the Federal Advisory Committee Act, 5 U.S.C. App., that the portions of the meeting dealing with the discussion of questions that may appear on the Joint Board's examinations and the review of the November 2018 Pension (EA–2F) Examination fall within the exceptions to the open meeting requirement set forth in 5 U.S.C. 552b(c)(9)(B), and that the public interest requires that such portions be closed to public participation.

The portion of the meeting dealing with the discussion of the other topics will commence at 1:00 p.m. (EST) on January 7, 2019, and will continue for as long as necessary to complete the discussion, but not beyond 3:00 p.m. (EST). Time permitting, after the close of this discussion by Advisory Committee members, interested persons may make statements germane to this subject. Persons wishing to make oral statements should contact the Designated Federal Officer at nhqjbea@irs.gov and include the written text or outline of comments they propose to

make orally. Such comments will be limited to 10 minutes in length. All persons planning to attend the public session should contact the Designated Federal Officer at nhqjbea@irs.gov to obtain teleconference access information. Notifications of intent to make an oral statement or call in to the public session must be sent electronically to the Designated Federal Officer by no later than January 3, 2019. Any interested person also may file a written statement for consideration by the Joint Board and the Advisory Committee by sending it to: Internal Revenue Service; Joint Board for the Enrollment of Actuaries, Attn: Ms. Elizabeth Van Osten; SE:RPO, Room 3422; 1111 Constitution Avenue NW; Washington, DC 20224.

Dated: December 12, 2018.

Thomas V. Curtin, Jr.,

Executive Director, Joint Board for the Enrollment of Actuaries.

[FR Doc. 2018–27397 Filed 12–18–18; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4830–01–P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Antitrust Division

Notice Pursuant to the National Cooperative Research and Production Act of 1993—The Open Group, L.L.C.

Notice is hereby given that, on December 10, 2018, pursuant to Section 6(a) of the National Cooperative Research and Production Act of 1993, 15 U.S.C. 4301 *et seq.* ("the Act"), The Open Group, L.L.C. ("TOG") has filed written notifications simultaneously with the Attorney General and the Federal Trade Commission disclosing changes in its membership. The notifications were filed for the purpose of extending the Act's provisions limiting the recovery of antitrust plaintiffs to actual damages under specified circumstances. Specifically, 4IT GROUP, Wrocław, POLAND; Amphenol SV Microwave, West Palm Beach, FL; Autopro Automation Consultants Ltd., Grande Prairie, CANADA; Bell Helicopter Textron, Inc., Fort Worth, TX; CGI Group, Inc., Montreal, CANADA; Coala Ltd., Helsinki, FINLAND; Citalid Cybersécurité, Versailles, FRANCE; Conf. Inter Das Coop Ligadas ao SICREDI, Port Alegre, BRAZIL; CXO Dynamix Business Solutions (PTY) Ltd, Pretoria, SOUTH AFRICA; Devon Energy Corporation, Oklahoma City, OK; Foresight Resilience Strategies, LLC, Bethesda, MD; FSOPN Science and Technology, Co., Ltd., Beijing, PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA;